# Open Video Communications Scheduling Guide

Version 1.14 Last Updated: May 2014

### **Table of Contents**

Glossary of Terms3
Unscheduled Video Conferences4
Options for Creating Open Instant Video Subscriptions
Ad Hoc CTS Point-to-Point
Scheduled Open Video Conferences17
Scheduling Options for Reserved Conferences17Video Network Operations Center (VNOC)17Basic Scheduling required for all Reserved Meetings17Additional Required Inter-Exchange Scheduling Information191. Inter-Exchange Meeting Hosted on Bridge with Other Carrier Participating Sites 192. Inter-Exchange Meeting Hosted on Other Carrier's Bridge with Participating Sites193. Inter-Exchange Meeting on TATA Bridge with TATA Public Sites20Schedule via Web Portal21
Call Launch Dialing Options32
One-Button-to-Push Option – Cisco CTS Only
URI Dialing Option
Dial String Dialing Option

1

## **Glossary of Terms**

It is very helpful to understand the different types of Open Video calls. Below is a list of the four basic types:

- **Point-to-Point** a meeting between two endpoints.
- **Multipoint** a meeting between more than two endpoints.
- **Business-to-Business** (inter-company) a meeting between two or more enterprises on the Open Video Communications exchange. Can be point-to-point or multipoint.
- Inter-exchange a meeting between two or more endpoints where at least one is on the Open Video Communications exchange and at least one is on another service provider's exchange (there is an agreement between service providers). Can be point-to-point or multipoint. *This type of conference is currently supported for CTS endpoints.*

There are also both Scheduled and Unscheduled calls:

- **Scheduled** calls reserved at least one hour in advance of the meeting. This is the standard (can be point-to-point or multipoint).
- **Unscheduled** an "on the fly" video call no reservation required.
  - Instant Video see Section 5.
  - Ad Hoc Cisco Telepresence (CTS) Point-to-Point must have the E.164 ('mock' phone number of the CTS endpoint) to complete this call. Can only be point-to-point.
- **SIP URI** it is important to understand the term URI because it is used in two separate and distinct ways:
  - URI is a naming convention used to identify an endpoint address; for example, joe.laptop@acme.com. Think of this as your home address.
  - URI is also an address of a "virtual meeting room" that you use to join a video meeting that you either host, or in which you are invited to participate. In this case you are given the URI address to join a meeting. Think of this as a telephone number you use to join an audio conference today, it just has a different format in the world of video (e.g. 12345678@join.mymeetings.com or joe.smith.@join.company.com).
- E.164 This is a 'mock' telephone number or dial string that is used with hardware or soft clients that cannot use a SIP URI. The "E. 164" functions exactly like the URI. They are both used to identify an endpoint and to join a "virtual meeting room". Whether you use URIs or E.164s depends on what type of endpoint you are using for your video meetings.

## **Unscheduled Video Conferences**

### **Options for Creating Open Instant Video Subscriptions**

### Video Network Operations (VNOC)

There is basic information you are required to provide the VNOC when calling to create an Instant Video Subscription. From the United States call 1-800-475-5000; see Appendix A for VNOC Global Access Numbers.

You will receive an email within 24 hours after the subscription is confirmed. Please keep the confirmation as it contains personal information needed to activate a video conference (leader passcode and dialing options). When you want to host an instant video conference, send the attendee section of the confirmation, which contains attendee dialing options and attendee passcode, to up to six video participants to enable them to join your call. Open Instant Video functions in a very similar manner as Instant or "meet me" audio conferencing does today.

When you call the VNOC, you are prompted for the following:

- 1. Type of meeting (Open Instant Video Subscription).
- Authorization code. You must have an authorization code to obtain an Open Instant Video Subscription. If you do not have your code, please contact your site coordinator, Account Manager, or Conferencing Customer Relations from the United States at 800-475-0600 or via email at <u>customerrelations@mymeetings.com</u> to obtain a universal authorization code before registering; see Appendix A for Global Customer Relations access numbers.
- 3. Company name.
- 4. Subscriber's name (leader/host).
- 5. Title of Open Instant Video Subscription. The title you provide is a way of differentiating between your subscriptions should you choose to create more than one.
- Encryption Choice. If you set your subscription to "Encrypted," encryption is required for endpoint participation; only encrypted endpoints can join your Instant Video meetings. A non-encrypted endpoint is unable to join the meeting. If you do not select "Encrypted," both encrypted and unencrypted endpoints can join your meetings.

- Leader Passcode. You can accept a system generated Host passcode, or provide your own 8-digit passcode. It is this passcode that you *must* use to activate an Instant Meeting in which you are the host.
- 8. Participant Passcode. You can accept a system generated participant passcode, or provide your own 8-digit passcode. It is this passcode that attendees you invite to your instant meeting can use to join.
- 9. URI dial option. The system automatically provides you leader and participant URI dialing options based on the leader and participant passcodes. You can also add a customized URI (<u>john.smith.@join.company.com</u>) for the use of the attendees you invite to participate in your meeting. This dialing option is typically available to endpoints using the SIP protocol (some examples are laptops and tablets with video software).
- 10. Participant Control Choices. You can make use of the Access Control Feature, which enables you to restrict those endpoints who can participate in your Instant Video meetings by either allowing only specific endpoints to join; or by blocking certain endpoints from joining. Decide which option you prefer and have the endpoint identification (E.164 or URI) handy to provide when prompted. If you do not choose to use the Access Control feature, the conference allows any endpoint to join including "Guests" which are *any* endpoints you invite to participate regardless of whether or not they are customers.

### Web Portal

You can establish an Instant Meeting subscription using the e-meetings web portal. You must have a Conferencing account. Work with your account team to obtain the required login information.

1. Go to <u>https://www.mymeetings.com</u>. The *My Meetings* login screen appears.

MyMeetings Confe	rencing Solutions			i 🚺 💳 💽
Home A	udio Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access Account
Velcome to MyMee	tings		R	eservation Numbers
MyMeetings provides you • Schedule a conference • Join an event or RSVP to a • Subscribe to select conferences • Manage your conferences	an event	eting	Login: jcustome Password:	r
leaders			Register for audio/net/vide	<u>eo</u>
	Conference Scheduling		Register for audio/net/vide	



- 2. Enter your Login and Password.
- 3. Click Login under Manage My Meetings. The My Meetings home page appears.

MyMeetings Conferencing Solutions						* 💵 💻 💿
Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader	Tools	Access Account
lanage My Meetings						Logout
	Net Conferencing Subs	elick on the Conference		d Video My ences My	Identity	Messages
Conference ID	Meeting Description		mber(Total)	Leader	Encryptio	n Features
Add Subscription	calls to display at this	s time.				Help Logout

Figure 2 Instant Video Subscriptions

- 4. Click the Instant Video Subscriptions tab.
- 5. Click Add Subscription. The INSTANT VIDEO Create Subscription screen appears.

Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access Account
ige My Meetings					
	0				
ate Subscrip	-				
	bscription Leader? ne:Harry Harcrow	-			
-	n: All Purpose Video I				
Start Date		End Date			
Jan 🔻 14 🔻 20	14 🔻	End Date	<b></b>	•	
		No End Da	ite		
Leader Passcode: Participant Passco	de:				
Note: Enter passcoo	le. Passcodes shou	ld be 8 digits in length			
existing instant vide	o subscription.	nat are already in use o			
If you do not want to be assigned to you.	create your own pas	scodes, leave blank a	nd they will		
Subscription Size:	2 MB+ (Immersive / Te	ePresence) 🔻			
Please select the I	nighest bandwidth re	equired for your video ire a minimum conne		otion.	
Number of Ports Ne	eeded: 6 🔻				
Features Further [	<u>)etails</u>				
Encryption: Allow will not be able to o Yes @	connect.	icipants. Sites that d	o not support encry	otion	
0 0	v participants to sta	art conferences before	the leader joins		
	Announce the ent	ry of participants with			
	Announce the exit (	of participants with			
Tone Out ( Auto Continuation	-	s to continue when le	ader disconnects fro	m call	
🎯 Yes 🔘 No					
		URI dialing option assi enerated URI, please <u>r</u>			
Participant URI:			@join.verizon.cor	n	
Participant Control					
Leader E-mail Add	IESS: HARRY HAR	ROW@ONE.VERIZON.CO	м		
Contact E-mail Ad		ROW@ONE.VERIZON.CO			
CSA CRC: Please enter up to	25 alphanumeric ch	naracters, which can	be used as a referer	ice code to	
identify the calls lis	ted on your Video (	Conferencing invoice I elp for additional deta	oy name, number or		
lf you need assista	nce with the setup	of this subscription, p	lease <u>contact us</u> .		
Submit Reset				Go Back Help	

Figure 3 Create Subscription

6. If you are creating the subscription for yourself, click the **Yes** radio button; if you are creating the subscription for someone else, click the **No** radio button.

- 7. Enter your name, if you are the leader (you are creating the subscription for yourself); or the name of the person for which you are creating the subscription.
- 8. Enter an Instant Meeting Subscription *Meeting Description*. The description you provide is a way of differentiating between your subscriptions should you choose to create more than one.
- 9. If you want this subscription to last indefinitely, continue to step 11; if you want the subscription to be temporary, enter the end date. Please note that after 180 days of inactivity a subscription is automatically deleted.
- 10. Enter Leader and Participant passcodes, if applicable. Otherwise the system generates them for you. Both must be unique 8-digit numeric codes.
- 11. Select *Subscription Size*. Choose the **2MB+ (Immersive/Telepresence)** option.
- 12. The port size is fixed at **6**.
- 13. Select the *Encryption Option*, if applicable. If you click **Yes**, only encrypted endpoints can join your meetings. If you click **No**, both unencrypted and encrypted endpoints can join your meetings.
- 14. The remaining features are pre-set for your subscription:
  - Quick Start: will not allow participants to start conferences before the leader joins.
  - **Conference Entry:** announces the entry of participants with silence (no beep or tone) which is preferable since you will see the participant when they join.
  - Conference Exit: announces the exit of participants with silence (no beep or tone) - which is preferable since you will no longer see the participant when they exit.
  - **Auto Continuation:** allows conferences to continue when the leader disconnects from the call.
- 15. Enter a customized URI dialing option. It supplements the system generated URI dialing options you automatically receive one based on the leader passcode and one based on the participant passcode. If your company requested to be a "Signature Customer" when purchasing our service, the unbranded URI is displayed: <a href="mailto:blank@join.mymeetings.com">blank@join.mymeetings.com</a>.
- 16. Click **Participant Control** to make use of the access control features.

MyMeeting	S Conferencing Solu	tions			
Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access Account
Manage My Meetings					Logout
INSTANT VIDI Participant Co	ntrol		ese Endpoints		
	E.164 Number/URI	Description	Remove		
			Remove		
			Remove		
			Remove		
	A	Add Endpoint			
OK Cancel				Help	

Figure 4 Participant Control

- 17. If you click the Block These Endpoints radio button, the list of endpoints you enter is unable to participate in any of your Instant Video meetings. If you click the Allow Only These Endpoints radio button, only the list of endpoints you enter can participate in any of your Instant Video meetings.
- 18. Enter the E.164 or URI and description of each.
- 19. Click **Add Endpoint** button when you are done.
- 20. Click **OK**. The INSTANT VIDEO Create Subscription screen reappears.
- 21. Click **Submit**. The INSTANT VIDEO Create Confirmation screen appears.

Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access Account
lanaga My Maatinga					Logou
lanage My Meetings					Logou
INSTANT VIDEC	)				
Create Confirma	tion				
Chank you for establishing	a vour Instant Vid	las Subscription*			
DALIK VOLTOL ASTADUSTING					
mank you for establishing	g your instant viu	leo Subscription .			
-			ntaining these det	ails and other	
You may print this page f	for your reference	. Confirmation e-mail co		ails and other	
You may print this page f	for your reference	. Confirmation e-mail co		ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about	for your reference using the service	. Confirmation e-mail co		ails and other	
Thank you for establishing You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description :	for your reference using the service	. Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addro	ess you provided.	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description :	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre	ess you provided. eeting	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP:	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP: SIP users may dial:	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode:	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.veriz	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode: Participant Passcode:	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.veriz 06363048	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode: Participant Passcode: CSA CRC :	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.veriz 06363048 18483449	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : IP: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode: Participant Passcode:	for your reference using the service	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.veriz 06363048 18483449	ess you provided. eeting 3048	ails and other	
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : P: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode: Participant Passcode: CSA CRC : Continue	for your reference using the service n # :	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.veriz 06363048 18483449 12345	ess you provided. eeting 3048 on.com		
You may print this page f nelpful information about Subscription Confirmation Meeting Description : P: SIP users may dial: Leader Passcode: Participant Passcode: CSA CRC :	for your reference using the service n #: stant Video subs	Confirmation e-mail co will be sent to the addre 2420070 All Purpose Video M 1-866-845-273306363 06363048@join.verize 06363048 18483449 12345	ess you provided. eeting 3048 on.com ically replace any	recurring "one-	

#### Figure 5 Create Confirmation

22. Click **Continue**. The *Instant Video Subscriptions Tab* appears.

MyMeetings Conferencing Solutions					₩ 🔲	-
Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access A	ccount
anage My Meeting Instant Meeting Subscriptions To View, Update	_		rved Reserved Calls Conferen	Video My Identity	Messa	Logi iges
Conference ID	Meeting Description	Phone Numbe	er(Total) I	Leader	Encryption	Features
2420070 Subscription 1 - 1	All Purpose Video Meeti	ing 1-866-845-27	3306363048(2) H	HARRY HARCROW	No	Ð
Add Subscripti	on				Help	Logou

Figure 6 Instant Video Subscriptions

23. Click Logout in the top right corner of the screen.

NOTE: A detailed confirmation of your Open Instant Meeting Subscription is sent via email. Please keep the confirmation as it contains personal information needed to launch a video conference (dialing options and leader passcode). When you want to host an instant video conference, send the attendee section of the confirmation, which contains attendee dialing options and attendee passcode, to up to six video participants so each participant can join your call.

### **Use Your Instant Video Subscription**

Once you created your Instant Video Subscription by using either the Web Portal or by calling the VNOC, you will receive an email confirmation:

#### PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO THIS E-MAIL

Thank you for selecting Instant Video Conferencing for your virtual meeting needs. We look forward to providing you with world-class video meeting services.

To invite attendees to join an Instant Video Meeting, simply cut and paste the Instant Video Attendee Access Information at the bottom of this confirmation, and provide in advance of your meeting.

To protect the security of your subscription, we recommend that you do not forward any other information contained in this email.

Confirmation Number	2232800
Company	ACME
Instant Video Meeting Leader/Contact	Mary Jones 1-212-555-1234
Instant Video Meeting Subscription Title	All Purpose Video Meeting
Start Date	April 1, 2013
End Date	Ongoing
Leader Passcode	12121212
Attendee Passcode	13131313
Instant Video Meeting Leader Activate Options	H.323 users can dial: 1-866-845-2733-12121212 SIP users can dial: 12121212@join.company.com
	Cisco Telepresence users please dial: 9**1-866-845-2733-12121212

#### Instant Video Meeting Subscription Confirmation

#### **Subscription Settings**

Speed	2 MB+ (Immersive / TelePresence)
Participant (End Point) Capacity	6

The below text is the only information you should forward to call participants. Please ensure that you provide all necessary information to the participants in advance of the call. <u>NOTE</u>: For security purposes, only attendees can use a customized URI to join the call. You as the leader must use either the URI containing your leader passcode or the dial-string followed by the leader passcode to activate your Instant video meeting, as noted above.

If you are inviting any new business partners to join your meeting for the first time, we recommend they call the VNOC for a quick test since the access options below may vary based end point type.

#### Instant Video Attendee Access Information

	H.323 users registered to a gatekeeper can dial: 1-866-845-2733-13131313
Instant Video Meeting Attendee Access Options	SIP users may dial: mary.jones.video.mtg@join.company.com 13131313@join.company.com
	Cisco Telepresence users please dial: 9**1-866-845-2733-13131313

#### For assistance call your Video Network Operations Center (VNOC)

US Toll Free 1-800-475-5000	US Toll 1-415-228-5035
Australia Toll Free 1-800-505 020	HK Toll 852-2802-5100
Japan Toll 81-3-5539 5100	UK Toll 44-20-7950-9950

- 1. Send the **Instant Video Attendee Access Information** section of your confirmation to participants.
- 2. As the **Leader**, you must activate the video call depending your type of video device either by (using example above):
  - a. Dialing 1-866-845-2733 12121212 (H.323 endpoints)
  - b. Entering the SIP URI 12121212@join.company.com (soft clients Jabber, Polycom RealPresence, etc.)
  - c. Dialing 9\*\*1-866-845-2733 12121212 (Cisco CTS endpoints)
- 3. If you are a **Participant**, you can join the call depending on your type of device by (using example above):
  - a. Dialing 1-866-845-13131313 (H.323 endpoints)
  - b. Entering the SIP URI mary.jones.video.mtg@join.company.com or 13131313@join.verion.com (soft clients Jabber, Polycom RealPresence, etc.)
  - c. Dialing 9\*\*1-866-845-2733-13131313 (Cisco CTS endpoints).

Please note:

- If you are unsure of your device type SIP or H.323, please contact your system administrator or the VNOC.
- Until the Leader activates the video call, participants are placed in a "virtual waiting room" and see a screen with the message "Please wait until the leader activates the meeting."
- If the leader does not activate within 15 minutes of the first participant joining, the message "The meeting leader has not joined. You call is ending in approximately 30 seconds" will display on the screen. The call will then be terminated.

Once the leader activates and the video call is underway, the leader can disconnect and the participants can continue the video meeting.

### Ad Hoc CTS Point-to-Point

Another option available to you for an unscheduled video call is an ad hoc point-to-point call between two Cisco CTS endpoints. In order to accomplish this, you must know the endpoint identifying address, referred to as an E.164 number, so you can directly dial the CTS endpoint you want to reach.

- Obtain the E.164 number for the endpoint you want to contact. You can get this number from either the person you are meeting with at the other enterprise, your administrator, or you can contact the VNOC if you are unable to obtain the number; the VNOC's ability to provide you the E.164 number is governed by the Directory options selected by your business partner (see Section 3).
- 2. Press the **New Call** soft key.
- 3. Enter **9\*\*1** and the E.164 number to reach your party (in country dialing prefixes may apply).



# Scheduled Open Video Conferences

### **Scheduling Options for Reserved Conferences**

### Video Network Operations Center (VNOC)

There is basic scheduling information you are required to provide for all video conferences; however there are specific instructions for inter-exchange meetings noted in the details below.

Scheduled video conferences must be reserved at least one hour prior to the start time. You receive an email within 24 hours after the meeting is confirmed. Please share that confirmation with other meeting participants and forward the calendar invite to all participants so it is in their calendars. Inter-exchange participants receive an email confirmation directly from the VNOC that includes important dial-in instructions that they should bring to the meeting with them.

NOTE: Inter-exchange meetings must be scheduled by calling the VNOC; any customer scheduling a meeting with "guests" – participants that are not "registered" (see Step 13 below) must call the VNOC.

### **Basic Scheduling required for all Reserved Meetings**

- 1. Type of meeting (Open Video also referred to as Immersive) and Inter-exchange, if applicable.
- Video authorization code. You must have a video authorization code to schedule a video conference. If you do not have your code, please contact your site coordinator, Account Manager, or Conferencing Customer Relations from the United States (800-475-0600) to obtain a universal authorization code before scheduling. See Appendix A for Global Customer Relations access numbers.
- Authorization code you must have an authorization code to schedule a video conference. If you do not have your code, please contact your site coordinator, Account Manager, or Conferencing Customer Relations from the United States (800-475-0600) to obtain a universal authorization code before scheduling.
- 4. Company name.
- 5. Meeting date.
- 6. Start time and duration of meeting.

- 7. Meeting title.
- 8. Meeting time zone.
- Service level of meeting (Standard VNOC operator ensures a successful call launch and response to any requests for assistance or Premier – VNOC operator proactively monitors pre-call for any issues, ensures a successful launch and remains on the call for the duration to proactively address problems and questions).
- 10. Meeting leader name (if you are scheduling the meeting on behalf of the leader, your name as well).
- 11. Cost Center number (optional) by using a cost center, you can bill back to a department. Costs can be split among multiple cost centers, if applicable.
- 12. Host site.
- 13. Participating sites.
- 14. Unregistered Participating sites, if any if one of your participants is not a customer, sometimes referred to as an unregistered endpoint or "guest", the VNOC asks you for information to identify it since it is not stored in our system (this is likely to be the exception rather than the rule and should occur infrequently).
  - Name of site and country.
  - Site coordinator name, email address and phone number.
  - Time zone.
  - One of two types of endpoint identifiers **E.164** identifying dial string of the endpoint or **URI** e.g. john.doe.video.device@company.com.
- 15. Encryption Choice if you choose Encrypted only encrypted endpoints can join the meeting a non-encrypted endpoint is unable to join. If you do not choose Encrypted both encrypted and unencrypted endpoints can join your meeting.
- 16. URI in addition to generating a dial string + passcode to join your meeting, the system generates a URI (12345678@join.company.com) where 12345678 is a randomly generated passcode. You can also select a different 8-digit passcode. If your company requested to be a "Signature Customer" when purchasing our service, the unbranded URI used is <u>12345678@join.mymeetings.com</u>.

### Additional Required Inter-Exchange Scheduling Information

NOTE: Currently, Inter-Exchange video meetings are only supported for Cisco Telepresence endpoints (CTS series).

There are Inter-Exchange connections with several major carriers including Tata, BT, Orange, and Telefonica; if you want to participate in a meeting hosted on one of these carriers' bridges, the scheduling procedures are the same but there are slight variations in the terminology. The meeting identification information is provided to you by the carriers' customer to ensure you join the correct meeting. While carriers' use different terminology (e.g., conference ID, passcode, PIN) they are all referring to the numeric code you need to successfully join their meeting and provide to the VNOC.

If you are hosting the meeting and inviting customers with another carrier, the meeting identification number they need to ensure they can join the correct meeting is included in the confirmation emailed to them by the VNOC.

It is important to remember if you are hosting an Inter-Exchange meeting, you must schedule the meeting by calling the VNOC first; so the other carrier's customers who are scheduling their sites to join your meeting have a conference ID when they contact their NOC.

Alternatively, if you are joining a meeting hosted on another carrier's bridge, the other carrier's customer must schedule the meeting via their carrier's NOC first, and then provide the conference ID so you can call the VNOC and schedule your sites to join the correct meeting.

Please be mindful of this and do not hesitate to ask the VNOC for assistance.

### 1. Inter-Exchange Meeting Hosted on Bridge with Other Carrier Participating Sites

- Type of meeting Inter-Exchange with TATA, BT, or Orange sites hosted on bridge.
- Meeting leader names/email addresses/country for each site.

NOTE: You are reserving the meeting bridge; the TATA, BT, or Orange site participant must reserve their sites following their carrier's guidelines (they will need the meeting identification number provided to them on the meeting confirmation emailed to them by the VNOC, so you must make the reservation first).

### 2. Inter-Exchange Meeting Hosted on Other Carrier's Bridge with Participating Sites

- Type of meeting Inter Exchange with TATA, BT, or Orange site hosted carrier's bridge.
- Conference ID/Pin/Passcode the other carrier's community user receives a numeric conference ID/PIN/Passcode when they reserve the meeting bridge and their sites. They

must make their reservation first and provide you the conference ID/PIN/Passcode because the VNOC needs it for scheduling.

**NOTE:** The Telefonica exchange requires that each site participating in a meeting hosted on its bridge be encrypted.

### 3. Inter-Exchange Meeting on TATA Bridge with TATA Public Sites

- If you are a first time user of TATA Public Telepresence Suites Services (public sites), you must register by calling the TATA VNOC at +1.312.646.7620 or by accessing the following website: <a href="https://tata.vnocservice.com/signup.aspx">https://tata.vnocservice.com/signup.aspx</a>. You will receive your account details and account host code via e-mail (important: please store your account host code).
- Schedule your meeting and TATA Public Telepresence Suite(s). Go to the conference scheduling portal at <a href="https://tata.vnocservice.com">https://tata.vnocservice.com</a>.
- You are also required to call the VNOC. Please provide the following information about your meeting:
  - o Type of meeting inter-exchange with TATA public room on TATA Exchange
  - Conference ID/PIN/Passcode
  - Additional participating rooms
  - If participants in the public room have any issues, they should contact the TATA VNOC at +1.312.646.7620.

NOTE: Your financial obligation for the use of TATA public rooms is directly with TATA.

### Schedule via Web Portal

You can establish a reservation using the my meetings web portal. You must have a Conferencing account. Work with your account team to obtain the required login information.

1. Go to <u>https://www.mymeetings.com</u>. The *My Meetings* sign in page appears.

MyMeetings	Conferencing Solut	lions			§ 💵 💻 💽
		64			1.0
Home	Audio	Net	Video	Leader Tools	Access Account
MyMeetings provide • Schedule a confere • Join an event or RS • Subscribe to select • Manage your confe leaders	ence GVP to an event t conferencing service		neeting	Login: jcustome Password: •••••• Login Forgot Login/Password? Register for audio/net/vide	•
Resources <ul> <li>Product Updates</li> <li>Customer Resource</li> </ul>	• Col • Set • Set • Set • Set • e-S	erence Scheduling -up an Instant Meetin -up an Instant Net Co -up an Instant Video -cheduling (Online So -ail Reservation Form	Assistant NEW! Ig Audio Conferenc onference Conference chedulers)	Participant Join • Join an Event* • Web RSVP*	

Figure 7 Sign In

- 2. Enter your Login and Password.
- 3. Click Login. The My Meetings home page appears.

MyMeetin	<b>gs</b> Conferencing Solu	tions				₩ 🔲 💻 💽
Home	Audio	Net	Video		Leader Tools	Access Account
anage My Meetings	2					Logo
Instant Meeting Subscriptions	Net Ins Conferencing Sub	tant Video Reservoscriptions Audio C	ved Res	erved Vide	My Identity	Messages
To view, update o	or delete a reserved vide	o call, click on the Conf	erence ID.			
Conf. Call Da ID	te and Time	Duration (in mins)	Title	Conf. Type	Encryption	Service Level
Sorry there are n	o calls to display at this	s time.				
	_					
Add Conference	Add Room Reserv	ation				Help Logout
	N					

#### Figure 8 Leader Login

4. Click the **Reserved Video Conferences** tab.

There are some important details to note when scheduling:

- All calls must be scheduled at least one hour in advance.
- All calls have a minimum length of 30 minutes.
- 5. Click the **Add Conference** button. The *Conference Scheduling Assistant* screen appears.

MyMeeting	IS Conferencing Soli	utions						-
Home	Audio	Net	Video		Leader Tools		Access Account	
								Logo
Conference So	cheduling Ass	istant						
Conference List								
🚧 🖬 Type o	f conference							
Type of Conference		0	Audio	۲	Video	۲	Conference Room	
Will you be the leader for	the conference?	۲	Leader	O	Not Leader			
Will you need operator as	ssistance?	۲	Operator assisted	-				
What will the frequency of	of your conference(s) be	e? ©	One time	O	Recurring series			

Figure 9 Conference Scheduling Assistant

- 6. Select **Video** as the type of conference.
- 7. Select **Leader** if you are hosting the conference (skip to step 11).

-OR-

Select **Not Leader** if you are not hosting. The *Search for Leader* pop-up appears. All calls have a minimum length of 30 minutes.

onference Scheduling Assistan			
	Search for leader		
🚧 🗉 Type of conference	Please enter	the name and email address of the leader.	
	First name:	Mary	<u>Kreetstet</u>
ype of Conference	Last name:	Smith	
Vill you be the leader for the conference?	Email:	mary.smith@company.cor	
/ill you need operator assistance?		Cancel Q Search For Leader	

Figure 10 Search for Leader

8. Enter the name and email of the leader and click **Search For Leader**. The search results appear.

Conference Scheduling Assist	ant
Conference List	The following leader(s) has been found:
£. £.	First name Last name Email
🖀 Type of conference	HARRY HARRY HARRY @VERIZONBUSINESS.COM
Type of Conference	*The selected leader will be added to the leader list on the "Select Leader" tab.
Will you be the leader for the conference?	Cancel Select Leader
Will you need operator assistance?	Operator assisted
What will the frequency of your conference(s) be?	One time   Recurring series
🕌 🔳 Video - Recurring	

Figure 11 Select Leader

- 9. Select the leader and click **Select Leader**. The *Conferencing Scheduling Assistant* screen appears.
- 10. The **Operator assisted** option is automatically selected.
- 11. Select **One time** if this conference is a one-time occurrence. The *Video One Time* screen appears (page 35).

-OR-

Select **Recurring series** if this is a recurring conference (example next page). For the purpose of this guide, a one-time conference is used. Other than meeting logistics, the scheduling process is the same for both conference types.

Conference Scheduling Assist	tant
Conference List	
Type of conference	
Video - Recurring	
Participating Endpoints =	
	+ Add Endpoints
Service Level	Standard Premier
Logistics 🗖	
What is the date and time for your conference?	MM/DD/YYYY
What is the expected duration of your conference?	hh • : mm •
What title would you like to give the conference?	
Would you like to add Audio only participants?	© Yes ◉ No
Would you like an end date? If so, select a date.	No end date
Conference frequency:	○ Weekty ○ Bi-weekty ○ Monthly
	🔲 Sunday 🔲 Monday 💭 Tuesday 💭 Wednesday
	Thursday Friday Saturday
CSA CRC	
	🔁 Back 🕒 Next
Video Features 🖷	

Figure 12 Video - Recurring

Conference Scheduling Assista	ant
Conference List	Γ
<ul> <li>Type of conference</li> <li>Video - One Time</li> </ul>	Add Endpoints
Participating Endpoints =	
	Add Endpoints     Show Endpoint Schedules
Service Level	Standard O Premier
Logistics =	
What is the date and time for your conference?	MM/DD/YYYY
	ASAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.)
What is the expected duration of your conference?	hh 🔹 : mm 💌
What title would you like to give the conference?	
Would you like to add Audio only participants?	Yes I No
CSA CRC	
	G Back Dext
Video Features	
	Cancel Submit

Figure 13 Video - One Time

12. Click Add Endpoints. The Search Endpoints screen appears.

Compar	ıy:	Country:		City:
CSA 1	TESTING -	Any	•	Any 👻
Campus	s:	System Ty	/pe:	Alias:
Any	•	Open V	ideo 🔻	
Name:	of Endpoints	Show	w recently used endpoints	Search Endpoints
	Name	Alias	City	Country
	edarRapids-IA-Rm300 TS)		ROBINS	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
	nris Howley-Jabber		BROOKLYN	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
<u> </u>	oloSprqs-Co-Desktop		COLORADO SPRINGS	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
De	enve		DENVER	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
	Chan Select endpoir	its	RICHARDSON	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Room	ns with Scheduling Restriction	ns	Pers	onal Systems

Figure 14 Search Endpoints

- 13. Filter your endpoints by company (you or your business partners), country, city, state, etc.
- 14. Select **Open Video** from the *System Type* drop-down list for all endpoints.
- 15. If you typically schedule your conferences with the same endpoints, select **Show recently used endpoints** to further narrow your search. When checked, you will ONLY see the list of sites that were part of your last scheduled meeting.
- 16. Click **Search Endpoints**. The search results display under *List of Endpoints*.
- 17. Select the endpoints you want.
- 18. Click Add Endpoints. The Video One Time screen reappears.
- 19. Repeat steps 13 19 until all endpoints are selected.
- 20. Click **Close**. The *Video One Time* screen reappears.

ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop COLORADO SPRINGS UNITED STATES OF AMERICA   Service Level          Standard          Premier	Conference Sche	duling Assista	nt		
Participating Endpoints =      Participating Endpoints =       Name      Alias      City   Country      BROKLYN   UNITED STATES OF AMERICA    ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop   ColoRADO SPRINGS UNITED STATES OF AMERICA    ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop   ColoRADO SPRINGS UNITED STATES OF AMERICA    ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop   ColoRADO SPRINGS       Service Level  © Standard                                What is the date and time for your conference?    MMDD/YYYY      MMDD/YYY               What is the expected duration of your conference?    Mh • : mm •               What is the add Audio only participants?  Yes • No      CSA CRC Participant/URI Video Features D	Conference List				
Video - One Time     Participating Endpoints =      Add Endpoints =       Add Endpoints =       Country BROKLYN      UNITED STATES OF AMERICA     ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop     ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop     ColoRADO SPRINGS     UNITED STATES OF AMERICA     ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop        Service Level     Image: Standard                       Viat is the date and time for your conference?  ColoRADO SPRINGS   UNITED STATES OF AMERICA   ObioSprgs-Co-Desktop  ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop    Utable table and time for your conference?    Nthat is the date and time for your conference?    Nthat is the expected duration of your conference?    What is the oadd Audio only participants?    Yes © No   CSA CRC	48				
Participating Endpoints □         Add Endpoints □         Add Endpoints □         Show Endpoint Schedul         Chris Howley-Jabber         BROOKLYN       UNITED STATES OF AMERICA         ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop       COLORADO SPRINGS         Service Level       Image: Standard         Construction       View/edit endpoints         Logistics □       Image: Standard         What is the date and time for your conference?       MMDDDYYYY         MMDDDYYYY       Intra-; mm < AM          Mage: Standard       Premier         View/edit endpoints       Image: Standard         What is the date and time for your conference?       MMDDDYYY         Mh        ; mm          What is the expected duration of your conference?       Imt <: mm          What title would you like to give the conference?       Imt <: mm          Would you like to add Audio only participants?       Yes @ No         CSA CRC       Image: Standard @ point verizon.com         ParticipantURI       @poin.verizon.com	Type of con	iference			
Add Endpoints Show Endpoint Scheduli   Name Alias   City Country   Chris Howky-Jabber BROOKLYN   ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop COLORADO SPRINGS   Service Level Image: Standard   Cogistics = View/edit endpoints   What is the date and time for your conference? MMDD/YYY Image: Analysis of submitting this request.) What is the expected duration of your conference? Mould you like to give the conference? Would you like to give the conference? Yes @ No CSA CRC ParticipantURI Video Features 0 Video Features 0	🌃 🖬 Video - One	Time			
Name       Alias       City       Country         Chris Howley-Jabber       BROOKLYN       UNITED STATES OF AMERICA       Image: Council of Co	Participating Endpoints				
Chris Howley-Jabber BROOKLYN UNITED STATES OF AMERICA   ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop COLORADO SPRINGS UNITED STATES OF AMERICA   Service Level Image: Standard Premier   View/edit endpoints   Cologistics = What is the date and time for your conference? MM/DD/YYYY Image: https://www.amage.com/endpoints What is the expected duration of your conference? ht -: mm - AM - Mountain Time - AAAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.) What title would you like to give the conference? Mould you like to give the conference? Would you like to add Audio only participants? Image: Yes Image.com Video Features I2	Namo	Alias	City		Show Endpoint Schedules
Service Level Image: Standard   Premier View/edit endpoints   Use whet is the date and time for your conference? MM/DD/YYY Image: AM Image: Mountain Time Image: ASAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.) What is the expected duration of your conference? Inh Image: Imag		Ando		,	
Logistics =     What is the date and time for your conference?     MM/DD/YYY     Inh : mm AM Mountain Time     ASAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.)   What is the expected duration of your conference?   Inh : mm    What title would you like to give the conference?   Mountain Time   What title would you like to give the conference?   Yes @ No   CSA CRC   ParticipantURI     Video Features D	ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop		COLORADO SPRINGS	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA	
Logistics = What is the date and time for your conference? ASAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.) What is the expected duration of your conference? Multice to give the conference? Would you like to give the conference? Would you like to add Audio only participants? Yes @ No CSA CRC ParticipantURI @join.verizon.com CSA CRC Video Features :	Service Level		Standard Prem		
ASAP Call (Your call will start within 20 minutes of submitting this request.)         What is the expected duration of your conference?         Mh → : mm →         Would you like to give the conference?         Would you like to add Audio only participants?         Yes ● No         CSA CRC         ParticipantURI         @join.verizon.com         Video Features D	Logistics =			View/ed	lit endpoints
What is the expected duration of your conference?   What title would you like to give the conference?   Would you like to add Audio only participants?   Or Yes ONO   CSA CRC   ParticipantURI   Other Control	What is the date and time for yo	ur conference?	MM/DD/YYYY	hh 🔹 : mm 👻 AM 👻 Mountai	n Time 👻
What title would you like to give the conference? Would you like to add Audio only participants? Yes  No CSA CRC ParticipantURI @join.verizon.com CBack Document Noteendow			ASAP Call (Your call w	ill start within 20 minutes of submitting this re	quest.)
Would you like to add Audio only participants? © Yes © No CSA CRC @ ParticipantURI @join.verizon.com CSA CRC @ On Control Cont	What is the expected duration o	f your conference?	hh 👻 : mm 💌		
CSA CRC  ParticipantURI  Video Features D	What title would you like to give	the conference?			
ParticipantURI @join.verizon.com	Would you like to add Audio only	y participants?	🔘 Yes 🔘 No		
Video Features D	CSA CRC				
Video Features #	ParticipantURI			@join.verizon.com	
					🗲 Back 🏼 🕂 Next
	Video Features ■				
🗙 Cancel 🚽 Submit					Cancel Submit

Figure 15 Video - One Time

21. There are icons to view/edit endpoints.

- Click I to edit the endpoint.
- Click I to view the endpoint's information.
- Click to change the host from the first endpoint you added to the meeting (default) to another participant.
- Click  $\boxtimes$  to delete the endpoint.
- 22. Select the Standard or Premier service level.
- 23. Enter the date, time, and duration of your conference.
- 24. Click **Show Endpoint Schedules** to check the availability of endpoints. The *View Schedules* pop-up appears.

Name	Schedules
Chris Howley-Jabber	
ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop	

#### Figure 16 View Schedules

25. Any endpoints that were previously reserved (on the bridge) during your scheduled time appear with a grey background. If a conflict exists you should select a different endpoint or time slot. Click **OK**. The *Video - One Time* screen reappears.

Conference Sche	duling Assista	ant		
Conference List				
🕌 🖬 Type of conf	ference			
🕌 🗉 Video - One	Time			
Participating Endpoints =				
			+ Add Endpoints	Show Endpoint Schedules
Name	Alias	City	Country	
Chris Howley-Jabber		BROOKLYN	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA	
ColoSprgs-Co-Desktop		COLORADO SPRINGS	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA	
Service Level		Standard Pres	mier	
Logistics =				
What is the date and time for your	r conference?	12/06/2013	08 • : 00 • AM • Mountai	in Time 🔻
		ASAP Call (Your call v	will start within 20 minutes of submitting this re	quest.)
What is the expected duration of	your conference?	hh 🕶 : mm 👻		
What title would you like to give th	he conference?			
Would you like to add Audio only	participants?	🔘 Yes 🖲 No		
CSA CRC				
ParticipantURI			@join.verizon.com	
				🗲 Back 🕒 Next
Video Features <b>≖</b>				
			×	Cancel Submit



26. Select whether or not you need an audio dial-in number. Click **No** if you do not need participants to join your meeting via phone (go to step 30). The system generates an audio dial-in bridge and passcode for use with this conference only.

-OR-

Click Yes if you want to add audio participation. Audio options display.

What is the expected duration of your conference?	hh 💌 : mm 💌
What title would you like to give the conference?	How do you want participants to
Would you like to add Audio only participants?	Yes ◎ No access your conference?
Would you like to use your Instant Meeting for Audio only participants	Yes O No
How would you like your participants to access your conference?	◎ Dial-In Only ◎ Operator Dial-Out Only
How many dial-in participants will be joining?	
How would you like participants to dial into the conference?	US Toll-Free US Toll (also available for international users) Global Access Private Dial Plan
Who should an operator dial out to join the conference?	V Leader V Participant
	Dial Leader First Dial Leader Last     Dial-in options
	Leader First Name Leader Last Name Leader Country Code Leader Phone Number
	HARRY 1 719-535
	+ Add Participant

Figure 18 Audio Options

- 27. Select how you want participants to access your conference: **Dial-In Only, Operator Dial-Out Only**, or **Combination**.
- 28. Configure the dial-in options based on how you want participants to be able to access your conference: **US Toll-Free**, **US Toll**, **Global Access**, **Private Dial**.
- 29. Click Add Participant add more participants, if applicable.
- 30. Click **Submit**. A confirmation screen appears.

Type of conference: Standard Recurring
Conference Title: Weekly Budget Review
Confirmation number: 2314173
Leader name: HARRY HARCROW
Participant Passcode:
Start Date: Nov-13-2013
Start time: 08:00 AM
Duration: 60 mins
Site Information:
ALB/NY/005116/1000A AMS/NET/NLD11/FRANKFURT ROOM
Your confirmation will be e-mailed to the leader e-mail address listed in your profile.
🗙 Cancel Conference 🔪 Modify Conference 🗐 Print 🗸 OK —

Figure 19 Confirmation

31. Click **OK**. You will receive a confirmation email, which you can distribute to participants prior to your conference.

# **Call Launch Dialing Options**

Whether you scheduled a Standard or Premier level video meeting, or are using an Instant Video Subscription, the final step is actually launching your video meeting. There are several alternatives to launch or join a video meeting. Which one you choose is a function of what type of video endpoint you are using for the call. The following lists your options.

### **One-Button-to-Push Option – Cisco CTS Only**

If you are using a Cisco CTS endpoint, you can start your meeting using the One-Button-to-Push feature.

To launch a One-Button-to-Push meeting, perform the following steps:

1. Press the **Meetings** icon or the **Meetings** soft key.



2. When you locate your meeting, touch the entry or highlight the meeting using the navigation and press the **StartMtg** soft key to initiate the call.

### **URI Dialing Option**

This dialing option is typically available to endpoints using the SIP protocol (some examples are laptops and tablets with video software); the exact URI to use to join a video meeting is listed on the email confirmation you receive when you schedule a meeting or are invited to a meeting. Some examples of URI dialing are: <u>12345678@join.company.com</u>; <u>joe.sample.mtg@join.mymeetings.com</u>; <u>mary.smith.acme.mtg@join.company.com</u>.

### **Dial String Dialing Option**

The exact number to dial to join a video meeting is listed on the email confirmation you receive when you schedule a meeting or are invited to a meeting.

If you are using a **Cisco Telepresence** endpoint, you may join a meeting by dialing an E. 164 number followed by an 8 digit passcode; **the E.164 dial string must always be preceded by 9\*\*.** For example, the dial string listed on your meeting confirmation could be: 9\*\*1-866-845-2733-12345678 (12345678 = passcode).

If you are not using a Cisco Telepresence endpoint, and your endpoint does not support SIP URI Dialing (typically an endpoint based on the H.323 protocol) you would dial an E.164, followed by an 8 digit passcode. For example, the dial string listed on your meeting confirmation could be 1-866-845-2733-12345678 (12345678 = passcode).